
 

Page 1 of 3 

Notice of Meeting  
 

Cabinet Member for Schools and 
Learning Decisions  

 

Date & time Place Contact Chief Executive  
Thursday, 9 April 
2015 at 11.30 am 

Room 107, County 
Hall, Kingston upon 
Thames, Surrey KT1 
2DN 
 

Anne Gowing 
Room 122, County Hall 
Tel 020 8541 9938 
 
anne.gowing@surreycc.gov.uk 

David McNulty 
 

 

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in 
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please 
either call 020 8541 9122, write to Democratic Services, Room 122, 
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email 
anne.gowing@surreycc.gov.uk. 
 

This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 

have any special requirements, please contact Anne Gowing on 020 
8541 9938. 

 

 
Cabinet Member for Schools and Learning 

Mrs Linda Kemeny 
 

 



 
Page 2 of 3 

AGENDA 
 

1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests from 
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting. 
 

 

2  PROCEDURAL MATTERS 
 
 

 

2a  Members' Questions 
 
The deadline for Member’s questions is 12pm four working days before 
the meeting (31 March 2015). 
 

 

2b  Public Questions 
 
The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (2 April 
2015). 
 

 

2c  Petitions 
 
The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no 
petitions have been received. 
 

 

3  THE PROPOSED CLOSURE OF THE SPECIALIST HEARING 
IMPAIRED CENTRE AT BISHOP DAVID BROWN SCHOOL 
 
Surrey County Council has consulted on a proposal to close the Hearing 
Impaired Centre from 31 August 2015. 
 
The consultation period was from 26 January 2015 to 10 March 2015. 
There was a public meeting held at the school on 2 February 2015, 
following which Statutory Notices were published at the school, in the local 
newspaper and on the Surrey Says website stating the intention to close 
the specialist centre. This is in accordance with the School Organisation 
(Prescribed Alterations to Maintained School) Regulations 2013.  
 
The Cabinet Member is asked to review the comments received during the 
consultation period. 
 
 

(Pages 1 
- 20) 

 
 
 

David McNulty 
Chief Executive 

Published: 27 March 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 3 of 3 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting.  To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at 
reception for details. 
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings.  Please liaise with 
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending 
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 
switched off in these circumstances. 
 
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems. 
 
Thank you for your co-operation 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR SCHOOLS AND LEARNING 

DATE: 9 APRIL 2015 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 

NICK WILSON, STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR CHILDREN, 
SCHOOLS AND FAMILIES 

SUBJECT: THE PROPOSED CLOSURE OF THE SPECIALIST HEARING 
IMPAIRED CENTRE AT BISHOP DAVID BROWN SCHOOL 

 
 

SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 

 
Surrey County Council has consulted on a proposal to close the Hearing Impaired 
Centre from 31 August 2015. 
 
The consultation period was from 26 January 2015 to 10 March 2015. There was a 
public meeting held at the school on 2 February 2015, following which Statutory 
Notices were published at the school, in the local newspaper and on the Surrey Says 
website stating the intention to close the specialist centre. This is in accordance with 
the School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained School) Regulations 
2013.  
 
The Cabinet Member is asked to review the comments received during the 
consultation period. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
It is recommended that the Statutory Notice stating the local authority’s intention to 
close the specialist Hearing Impaired Centre at Bishop David Brown School is 
determined, such that the centre will close from 31 August 2015.   
 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
Demand for places at the specialist Hearing Impaired Centre has declined over the 
past three to four years. At the time of the proposed closure there will be no pupils 
accessing the provision. Analysis of younger aged pupils with Hearing Impairments 
indicates that there will be no future demand for places in the area in the foreseeable 
future. 
 
Any net gain of the resources currently available and under-utilised at the centre will 
be redeployed to support areas of growth within Special Educational Needs 
provision. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

3

Item 3



 

 

DETAILS: 

Business Case 
 
1. Bishop David Brown is a maintained 11 – 16 Secondary school that has a 

centre for pupils with hearing impairment, offering up to 6 places for pupils 
with Statements of Special Educational needs/Education and Health Care 
plans. The school receives enhanced funding to provide specialist resources 
and teaching expertise for pupils placed in the centre, which enables them to 
access the mainstream curriculum. 

2. The number of pupils placed at the centre has been declining over the past 
three to four years. Of the six available places at the centre only one is 
currently utilised. From September 2015 there will be no pupils accessing the 
specialist provision available. 

3. An analysis of younger aged pupils with Hearing Impairment indicates that 
there will be no demand for places at the Centre in the foreseeable future.  
Demand for places at Broadmere, the neighbouring primary specialist 
Hearing Impaired Centre in the area, has also declined.  The chart below 
demonstrates this: 

 

Key Stage 
Requiring 

specialist centre 
provision  

4 (Years 10 & 11) 1 

3 (Years 7, 8 & 9) 0 

2 (Years 3, 4, 5 & 6) 0 

1 (Year 1) & Early Years 
Foundation Stage 

(Reception)  
1 

 

4. Advances in technology such as digital hearing aids, cochlear implants and 
personal FM (radio aid) systems have all improved access for children with 
hearing impairment within the classroom.  

5. Over recent years parental preference for school places for children with 
hearing impairment has, in this area of Surrey, been for local mainstream 
school with support from the peripatetic Teachers of the Deaf from Surrey’s 
Physical and Sensory support team. 

6. The centre attracts place funding of £10,000 per place plus top up funding for 
each pupil placed at the centre under the Special Educational Needs 
resource allocation model. 

7. The centre has a staffing establishment of one teacher and two teaching 
assistants. The teacher in charge of the centre left in July 2014 and 
temporary staffing arrangements are in place to meet the needs of the 
remaining pupil. It is proposed that the two teaching assistants will continue to 
work at the school.  

Page 2

3



 

 

8. The senior leadership of the school are supportive of the proposal to close the 
centre and have worked in partnership with officers on this matter. 

9. The space currently occupied by the specialist centre will be utilised to 
provide additional secondary school places as part of the current expansion 
programme at the school which has been commissioned to meet basic need 
in the borough of Woking. 

CONSULTATION: 

10. An informal consultation was undertaken with relevant stakeholders and 
documentation issued stating the proposed intention was for the specialist 
centre to close. This concluded in December 2014.   

11. A formal consultation period started on 26 January 2015 and concluded on 10 
March 2015. A public meeting was held at the school on 2 February after 
which Statutory Notices were issued on 6 February. 

Consultation responses 

12. The informal consultation generated two responses.  As a result it was agreed 
to proceed with a formal consultation and the issuing of Statutory Notices. 

13. The public meeting was attended by 2 people. A total of 10 formal written 
responses were received during the consultation via the Surrey Says website, 
post and email. There were 4 responses from parents, potential parents or 
families of children with a hearing impairment; 5 from other responders and 1 
from a member of staff at the school. 

14. Of the 10 written responses, 3 agreed with the proposal to close the specialist 
centre, 2 disagreed with the proposal to close the specialist centre and 5 did 
not know or offer a position.  

15. Concerns about the proposal can be themed in three areas, these will be 
summarised and responded to in the following sections. 

Adequate provision 

16. Some concerns were raised about the closure of the centre and the longer 
term effect on having adequate secondary specialist provision for pupils with 
hearing impairments attached to a mainstream school.  

17. The specialist Hearing Impaired Centre has been available for parents and 
pupils for a number of years; however within this area of Surrey pupils do not 
appear to access the provision. The centre is significantly underutilised and, 
with no evidence to demonstrate that there is a future need in this area, the 
authority would be maintaining an empty specialist resource.  

18. Other responses expressed a concern that the mainstream alternative may 
not be appropriate to meet the level of need of a pupil. It was suggested that 
a specialist centre attached to a mainstream school allowed for pupils with a 
hearing impairment to have the opportunity to work alongside mainstream 
peers but with access to specialist support, if required. 

Page 3

3



 

 

19. Analysis of the data available demonstrates that there are no pupils in the 
local area that require specialist centre provision. The Physical and Sensory 
Support peripatetic team supports hearing impaired pupils in mainstream 
schools. The appropriate level of support for individual pupils with a hearing 
impairment in mainstream schools is identified by the use of nationally 
recognised eligibility criteria. These consider the level of hearing loss, how 
recently this has been diagnosed, the expertise and experience of the setting 
and support required for specialist technology. The service also offers training 
and support to staff in mainstream schools to ensure that the specific needs 
of pupils with a hearing impairment are appropriately met, without the need 
for specialist centre provision.   

Impact on parental preference 

20. Concerns were raised about the closure of the centre resulting in a reduced 
number of options from which parents could express a preference.   

21. Parents of pupils identified as having a Statement of Special Educational 
Needs or Education Health Care Plan are able to express a preference for a 
place at a maintained school (either mainstream or specialist). The specialist 
Hearing Impaired Centre at Bishop David Brown has been available for 
parents to express a preference for a number of years and parents have not 
chosen this option. The closure of the centre could impact on parental 
preferences in the future. However, based on the actual and forecast number 
of pupils that are currently known, there are no parents indicating they will be 
expressing a preference for a place at the centre.  

Funding 

22. A number of responses raised the financial aspect and future use of the 
resources available resulting from the closure of the centre.   

23. Currently the centre is funded for 6 pupils at a cost of £10 000 per place.  This 
is irrespective of the number of pupils that attend.  In addition to the place 
funding an extra sum related to the actual number of pupils who attend the 
centre is given. If the centre remained open the school would receive £60 000 
per year with no pupils accessing support. The additional resources gained 
from the closure of the centre will be redeployed to areas of growth.  
Resources will be used efficiently and effectively to meet the needs of pupils 
with Special Educational Needs rather than continuing to fund under used 
provision.    

RISK MANAGEMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

24. There is the risk that a new pupil moves into the area who requires specialist 
centre provision in a mainstream school. With the closure of the centre at 
Bishop David Brown school the only offer of alternative specialist secondary 
provision would be at Epsom and Ewell High school which is some distance 
from the area. This would have an impact on the new pupil and their family 
and would result in additional home to school transport costs for the Local 
Authority. However an enhanced level of support from the peripatetic service 
may be able to address the needs of the pupil at a local mainstream school. 

   

Page 4

3



 

 

Financial and Value for Money Implications  

25. The closure of the centre would see the efficient and effective use of 
resources for meeting the needs of pupils with Statements of Special 
Educational Needs/Education and Health Care Plans.  

26. The centre currently attracts total place funding of £60 000 per annum which 
can better be used to provide additional high need provision in other centres 
which are oversubscribed. 

Section 151 Officer  

27. It is recognised that the centre is currently under utilised and that the funding 
could be better used elsewhere. The Section 151 Officer notes that the more 
detailed needs analysis which will drive the service requirements and focus 
on outcomes has yet to be undertaken. This analysis will provide the basis for 
a much more coherent special school maintained sector which will be more 
cost effective. . 

28. The Section 151 Officer notes that there is a school basic need issue and that 
the space vacated by the unit will help with the school place provision 
requirement. 

Legal Implications – Monitoring Officer 

29. The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) 
(England) Regulations 2013 and (Establishment and Discontinuance of 
Schools) Regulations 2013 that came into force on 28 January 2014 provide 
statutory and non statutory guidance on the process for making prescribed 
alterations to schools. These require that a consultation takes place and a 
statutory proposal is published and these requirements have been satisfied.     

Equalities and Diversity 

30. A full equalities impact assessment has been undertaken as this proposal 
would have an impact on groups with protected characteristics. The 
document is attached to this report as Annex 1. 

31. During the assessment a number of potential impacts to service users 
regarding the protected characteristics of age, disability, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion and belief, carers and socio economic factors were 
identified. Many of the factors had potential positive and negative 
implications. 

32. As a result of the equalities impact assessment no changes to the plan are 
proposed. There are no further actions that need to be carried out as the 
positive impacts balance the negative impacts identified.  

Corporate Parenting/Looked After Children implications 

33. This proposal may impact on Looked After Children with a Statement of 
Special Educational Need/Education Health Care Plan with a hearing loss 
requiring access to a specialist centre in the area. If a Looked After Child with 
a hearing impairment required specialist provision their journey time to an 
alternative centre would be extended. However, the pupil may be able to 

Page 5

3



 

 

attend a local mainstream school with enhanced support from the peripatetic 
team and this may mean that they would feel more included within the local 
community. 

Safeguarding responsibilities for vulnerable children and adults implications 

34. Safeguarding vulnerable children is a high priority in Surrey schools. Schools 
have considerable expertise in safeguarding vulnerable children and adhere 
to robust procedures. The school would continue to apply good practice in the 
area of safeguarding. Safeguarding is monitored when Ofsted carries out 
inspections of schools. 

Climate change/carbon emissions implications 

35. The proposal is likely to reduce journeys as pupils with hearing impairments 
will attend their local mainstream school and will not be required to be 
transported to a specialist centre away from the locality where they live. 

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

36. Subject to Cabinet Member approval of the Statutory Notice, the proposal will 
be confirmed and the specialist hearing impaired centre at Bishop David 
Brown will close from 31 August 2015.  

 
Contact Officer: 
Julie Beckett, School Commissioning Officer, Tel: 01483 518109 
 
Consulted: 
SCC County Councillor for the local area 
All local schools 
Schools with Hearing Impaired Centres 
Parents of children at the school 
Parent Voice 
The National Deaf Children’s Society  
Children’s Hearing Services Working Groups in Surrey 
Neighbouring Local Authorities 
SCC Officers 
Unions 
Babcock 4S Consultants 
 
Annex: 
Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Sources/background papers: 

 Closure of Bishop David Brown Hearing Impaired Centre Consultation Document 

 All responses to the consultation 
 
 

 

Page 6

3



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

1. Topic of assessment  

EIA title:  
Proposal to close the Hearing Impaired Centre at the Bishop 
David Brown School (BDB) 

 

 

EIA author: Julie Beckett and Joanna Woodward 

 

2. Approval  

 Name Date approved 

Approved by1 P-J Wilkinson 24 March 2015 

 

3. Quality control 

Version number  1.6 EIA completed 24 March 2015 

Date saved 23 March 2015 EIA published 24 March 2015 

 
4. EIA team 

Name Job title 
(if applicable) 

Organisation Role 
 

Julie Beckett 
Commissioning 
Officer 

Surrey County 
Council School 
Commissioning 
Team 

Co author 

Joanna Woodward 
Assistant 
Commissioning 
Officer 

Surrey County 
Council School 
Commissioning 
Team 

Co author 

Pamela Todd 
Strategic Manager – 
Physical & Sensory 
Support 

Surrey County 
Council Children 
Schools & Families 

Advisor 

Mark Scarborough 
North West Area 
Education Officer 

Surrey County 
Council Schools & 
Learning 

Advisor 

 

 

  

                                                 
1
 Refer to earlier guidance for details on getting approval for your EIA.  

Page 7

3



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

5. Explaining the matter being assessed  

What policy, 
function or 
service is being 
introduced or 
reviewed?  

 
Bishop David Brown School (BDB) is a maintained 11-16 secondary 
school in Woking with a specialist centre for up to 6 pupils with 
hearing impairment. A pupil’s access to this resource is determined 
by a statement of Special Educational Needs (SEN) or Education 
Health and Care Plan naming the provision. 
 
The number of pupils accessing the centre has declined over the last 
3-4 years. The teacher in charge of the centre left in July 2014. The 
single remaining pupil (who is in Year 11, and will leave in July 2015) 
is supported by the experienced teaching assistants and a specialist 
peripatetic teacher of the deaf from PSS.  The two teaching 
assistants who currently work in the centre will be redeployed within 
the school after the centre has closed. 
 
An analysis has been undertaken of primary aged pupils with hearing 
impairments, which indicates that there is no demand for places at 
the centre in the foreseeable future. 
 
Over recent years, parents have opted for local mainstream school 
places with support from the peripatetic teachers of the deaf from 
Surrey County Council’s Physical & Sensory Support Team. 
 
Advances in technology such as digital hearing aids, cochlear 
implants and personal FM (radio aid) systems have improved access 
for children with hearing impairments in mainstream education. 
 
It is therefore considered that there is no established need for the 
centre to remain open and it is proposed that it should close from 
31 August 2015. 

What proposals 
are you 
assessing?  

 
From 31 August 2015, the specialist centre will close. 
 
According to their individual needs students with hearing impairments 
will be supported: 
- in local mainstream secondary education with support from 
specialist peripatetic teachers from the Physical & Sensory Support 
team in Surrey County Council; 
- at the specialist teaching centre at another secondary school in 
Surrey, if this is appropriate to meet the identified needs; 
- specialist schools. 

Page 8

3



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

Who is affected 
by the 
proposals 
outlined above? 

 
The proposal will impact 

 Students at Bishop David Brown School and their families 

 Students and families with hearing impairments, particularly 
those living in the Woking area 

 School staff 

 Staff in the Physical & Sensory Support team 
 

 

6. Sources of information  

Engagement carried out  

 
An informal consultation concluded in December 2014. 
 
A formal consultation started on 26 January 2015 and a public consultation meeting was 
carried out at Bishop David Brown School on 2 February 2015 at 4pm.  No parents or 
children attended the meeting. 
 
A survey was published on the Surrey County Council consultation website ‘Surrey Says’ 
from 26 January 2015 – 10 March 2015.  A total of ten responses were received and 
analysed.  Of the 10 written responses, 3 agreed with the proposal to close the specialist 
centre, 2 disagreed with the proposal to close the specialist centre and 5 did not know or 
offer a position.  
The council consulted with specialist organisations, e.g. the National Deaf Children’s 
Society, Parent Voice and the Children’s Hearing Services Working Groups in Surrey 

 
 

 Data used 

 

 School records of children who have accessed the centre in the past 

 School records of children currently on roll 

 Surrey Children’s Disability Register 

 Surrey-i JSNA Chapter: Ethnicity 

 Surrey-i Dataset: Births by area of residence of mother (Local Authority) 

 JSNA Data: Teenage pregnancy 
 

 

 

Page 9

3



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

7. Impact of the new/amended policy, service or function  
 
7a. Impact of the proposals on residents and service users with protected characteristics 
 

Protected 
characteristic2 

Potential positive 
impacts  

Potential negative 
impacts 

Evidence 

Age 

Secondary age children (11-
16) will potentially be 
impacted.  However, the 
number of pupils accessing 
the specialist centre has 
declined in recent years and 
no new children have been 
identified who are likely to 
attend in the future. 
 
Social inclusion of children 
with hearing impairments and 
cohesion of pupil population 
will be promoted if children 
are educated in mainstream 
schools with support. 
 
Children attending local 
schools with peripatetic 
learning support have the 
opportunity to attend the 
same school as siblings. 
 
The learning space at the 
school currently used by the 
specialist centre could be 
redeployed for use by 
mainstream children 
attending BDB. 

For children attending the 
specialist centre provided at 
another Surrey secondary 
school, their school journey will 
be longer and there will be 
fewer opportunities for local 
peer friendships. 
 
Siblings of children attending 
the specialist centre at another 
Surrey secondary school will 
be more likely to attend local 
schools. 
 
Specialist centre provision for 
hearing impaired children will 
not be available at Bishop 
David Brown School. 
 
 

Data analysis of future potential pupils from records 
kept by the Physical and Sensory Support Service. 

 
Data analysis of EMS system shows the current 
number of pupils who are either using, or likely to use, 
the specialist centre in the future: 
 

Key Stage 
Requiring 

specialist centre 
provision  

4 (Years 10 & 11) 1 

3 (Years 7, 8 & 9) 0 

2 (Years 3, 4, 5 & 6) 0 

EYFS (Reception)  and 
Key Stage 1 (Years 1 & 2) 

1 
 

                                                 
2
 More information on the definitions of these groups can be found here.  

P
age 10

3

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/new-equality-act-guidance/protected-characteristics-definitions/


EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

Disability 

For children with hearing 
impairments who choose to 
be educated in mainstream 
secondary schools, the 
following positive impacts: 
- children will not be 
segregated or stigmatised by 
being educated in a special 
centre; 
- children can be educated 
nearer home, which will 
provide more opportunities 
for friendships with local 
children and social groups; 
- children will be educated 
with peer groups and have 
more opportunities to make 
friends in school; 
- children will be provided 
with additional support from 
peripatetic staff; 
- mainstream schools’ 
knowledge in regard to 
disabilities will be enhanced. 
 
The specialist centre at BDB 
has been declining, and there 
is currently only one pupil 
attending. 
 
The other secondary school 
with a specialist centre is able 
to provide sign support 
resource as well as oral 
resource. BDB only provides 
oral resource. 
 

For children choosing to 
receive education in 
mainstream schools, there will 
be less opportunity to interact 
with hearing impaired peers in 
the community. (Although it 
should be noted that there is 
little opportunity at the moment 
as there have been very few 
pupils in recent years.) 
 
Closure of the centre will result 
in reduced parental choice in 
terms of provision in a 
specialist setting. 
 
Disabled parents might be 
disadvantaged by the 
additional travel to the other 
specialist centre if it is further 
from home than BDB. 
 
Hearing impaired parents of 
hearing impaired children 
might be better supported in a 
specialist centre which 
provides a ‘deaf community’ 
and is permanently staffed with 
specialist teaching and support 
staff. However, mainstream 
schools should provide support 
for parents with advice from 
peripatetic teachers. Parents 
will be sent reports on 
children’s progress. In addition, 
the Surrey Deaf Children’s 
Society will support all Surrey 

Of the 2,043 children currently registered on the 
Surrey Children’s Disability Register, 159 are 
recorded as having ‘hearing impairment’ (or similar).  
Hearing impairment related disabilities therefore 
account for approximately 7.78% of all registrations. 
 
In Woking borough there are 218 children registered, 
of which 18 are recorded as having ‘hearing 
impairment’ or similar.  Hearing impairment related 
disabilities therefore account for approximately 8.26% 
of Woking registrations, which is close to the Surrey 
wide figure. 
 
Parents choose to register their children voluntarily, 
and so this data can only provide an indication of the 
number of HI children in the county. Registrations 
cover a broad range of ability and disability, ranging 
from hard of hearing to profoundly deaf and ages 
from 0 to 19.  Only the more profound cases would 
have statements that would entitle the child to attend 
the specialist HI unit at BDB. 

P
age 11

3



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

Disabled parents would 
benefit from children being 
educated locally in 
mainstream settings (as 
opposed to travelling further 
to a specialist centre). 
 
Children with SEN needs due 
to disabilities in addition to 
hearing impairments (HI) 
- If being educated at a 

special school that 
supports their other 
disabilities, would also 
receive HI support from 
peripatetic teachers; 

- If being educated in a 
mainstream setting would 
receive appropriate 
support from the school 
as well as HI support from 
peripatetic teachers; 

- If being educated in a 
specialist HI school would 
receive support from the 
school for other SEN 
needs. 

families. 

Gender 
reassignment 

No impact identified No impact identified  

Pregnancy and 
maternity 

(includes parents 
of children) 

Parents potentially have 
greater choice of schools as 
their hearing impaired 
children can attend 
mainstream schools. 
 
Parents will have a greater 

Hearing impaired teenage 
mothers living near BDB and 
attending the other specialist 
centre would need to travel to 
the other school if they wanted 
to receive support at the 
specialist centre which might 

 Surrey-i Dataset:Births by area of residence of 
mother (Local Authority), years 2010, 2011, 2012, 
2013 

 Births by age of mother age under 18 

  

P
age 12

3



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

chance of hearing impaired 
children attending the same 
school as their siblings.  If a 
hearing impaired child is the 
eldest sibling, they would be 
more likely to be offered a 
first preference school, which 
would benefit younger 
siblings. 
 
Teenage mothers with HI 
have the opportunity to attend 
their local mainstream 
secondary schools with 
peripatetic support rather 
than attending the specialist 
HI centre, which might be 
further from home. 

be further from home. Based 
on data available and 
anecdotal information there are 
currently no teenage mothers 
with HI.  Likely future numbers 
could reasonably assumed to 
be very low. 
 
Specialist centres have 
specialist teachers on site 
(which could support parents 
with HI). This support would 
not be so accessible from 
peripatetic teachers. 
 
The organisation Deaf@x’s 
E.A.R.S: (Education & Advice 
on Relationship and Sex) 
campaign cites research 
indicating that Relationship 
and Sex education for children 
with HI frequently is 
inadequate. Their published 
case studies provide alarming 
insights into the experiences 
and ignorance of HI young 
people. It is therefore essential 
that good quality sex and 
relationship education is 
provided in mainstream 
settings and that children with 
HI are appropriately supported.  
This impact is applicable to all 
HI children. 
 

  2010 2011 2012 2013 

Average 
over 4 
years 

Surrey 
total 80 89 107 67 86 

Woking 4 10 12 5 8 

 

Based on data available (four years from 2010-2013) 
the average number of births per year by mothers 
aged under 18 in Woking is equal to the average in 
Surrey. No data is available on actual age of each 
mother. No teenage mothers with HI are known to 
SCC’s Physical & Sensory Support Team. 

JSNA Data: Teenage Pregnancy 

Data indicates that teenage pregnancies in Surrey 
result in higher numbers of terminations than datasets 
for both national and south-east. Similarly live births 
to teenage mothers are lower in comparison to 
national numbers and numbers for the south-east. 

 Deaf@x EARS - http://www.deafax.org/facts.php  

Race 
Anecdotal evidence suggests 
that some ethnic groups are 

School data indicates that a 
high proportion of children from 

School data (BDB children on roll) 
 

P
age 13

3



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

reluctant to acknowledge that 
their children are disabled 
and engage with services 
provided. For these families, 
it will be beneficial for their 
children to be educated and 
supported in a mainstream 
setting. 
 
Anecdotal evidence suggests 
that some ethnic groups feel 
stigmatised by disability and 
would prefer that children are 
educated with non disabled 
peers and do not receive 
support via specialist 
environments. 
 
REMA children would benefit 
from being educated in 
mainstream settings with 
peripatetic teaching staff, as 
they would be able to receive 
the support in whichever 
mainstream school they were 
attending at the time. 

Asian ethnic groups attend 
BDB School (31.57%).  This is 
considerably higher than the 
Surrey population average 
(4.95%) and the England 
average (6.56%). There is 
therefore a potential risk that 
these groups might be 
disadvantaged by the 
proposal. However as very few 
children have been identified 
as being likely to use the 
centre, this number is likely to 
be very small. 
 
Children born in the UK have 
hearing impairments identified 
as babies. However families 
moving into the UK may not 
have this advantage and HI 
may go undetected until the 
family registers at a GP 
surgery or the child attends 
school. However schools 
should pick up undetected HI 
at an early stage and offer and 
provide appropriate support.  
There is a possibility that ‘new’ 
(as yet unidentified) children 
may arrive in Woking needing 
support in the specialist centre 
who would need to travel to the 
other centre. 

Surrey-i JSNA Chapter: Ethnicity 
Table 1a Ethnicity data for Surrey, 2009 
 
No ethnicity data regarding children currently 
accessing service available at time of writing 

Religion and 
belief 

Children have the opportunity 
to be educated in mainstream 
faith (CofE and Catholic) 
schools with peripatetic 

No impact 

 

P
age 14

3



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

support (whereas BDB is not 
a faith school). 

Sex No impact No impact  

Sexual 
orientation 

No impact No impact  

Marriage and civil 
partnerships 

No impact No impact  

Carers3 

Young carers would be able 
to access mainstream 
education which might be 
closer to home. 
 
Young carers travelling to a 
centre at another school by 
being further from home 
might have opportunities to 
pursue other interests outside 
caring responsibilities. 

Young carers travelling to a 
centre at another school might 
be further from home. 
 
 

 

Socio Economic 
factors 

Children attending school 
closer to home and in a 
mainstream setting would 
have more social friendship 
opportunities. 
 
Children attending 
mainstream education would 
have more opportunities to 
participate in school 
extracurricular activities. 

Children attending the 
specialist centre might find that 
the cost of fares or lack of 
parental transport might make 
social friendship opportunities 
difficult. 
 
Parents whose children attend 
the specialist centre might find 
lack of transport prohibitive for 
travelling to school events and 
parents’ evenings etc. 

 

                                                 
3
 Carers are not a protected characteristic under the Public Sector Equality Duty, however we need to consider the potential impact on this group to ensure that there 

is no associative discrimination (i.e. discrimination against them because they are associated with people with protected characteristics). The definition of carers 
developed by Carers UK is that ‘carers look after family, partners or friends in need of help because they are ill, frail or have a disability. The care they provide is 
unpaid. This includes adults looking after other adults, parent carers looking after disabled children and young carers under 18 years of age.’ 

P
age 15

3



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 
7b. Impact of the proposals on staff with protected characteristics 
 

The proposal may result in a slight increase to workload of peripatetic staff. However parental preference in not choosing the specialist 
centre is already causing this impact. Consideration is already given to those staff with particular demands (e.g. young children etc.). 
 
The two teaching assistants at Bishop David Brown School currently employed in the specialist unit will be redeployed within the school 
in similar roles, and no impact is anticipated. 
 

Protected 
characteristic 

Potential positive 
impacts  

Potential negative 
impacts 

Evidence 

Age No impact  No impact   

Disability No impact  No impact   

Gender 
reassignment 

No impact No impact  

Pregnancy and 
maternity 

No impact No impact  

Race No impact No impact  

Religion and 
belief 

No impact No impact  

Sex No impact No impact  

Sexual 
orientation 

No impact No impact  

P
age 16

3



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

Marriage and civil 
partnerships 

No impact No impact  

Carers No impact No impact  

Socio Economic 
factors 

No impact No impact  

 

P
age 17

3



 

8. Amendments to the proposals  
 

Change Reason for change 

No changes proposed, as positive impacts 
balance negative impacts 

 

 

 

9. Action plan  
 

Potential impact (positive 
or negative) 

Action needed to maximise 
positive impact or mitigate 

negative impact  
By when  Owner 

No actions identified    

 
10. Potential negative impacts that cannot be mitigated  
 
 

Potential negative impact 
Protected characteristic(s) 

that could be affected 

Specialist centres have specialist teachers on site (which 
could support parents with HI). This support would not 
be so accessible from peripatetic teachers. 
However parents can receive support from school, 
peripatetic teachers and the Surrey Deaf Children’s 
Society. 
 

Disability (HI parents) 

There is a possibility that ‘new’ (as yet unidentified) 
children may arrive (e.g. from overseas) that require 
support in a specialist centre who would need to travel to 
the other centre. 

Race 

Children attending the specialist centre might find that 
the cost of fares or lack of parental transport might make 
social friendship opportunities difficult. (However this is 
mitigated by the opportunity for children to attend local 
mainstream schools.) 

Socio-economic 

Parents whose children attend the specialist centre 
might find lack of transport prohibitive for travelling to 
school events and parents’ evenings etc.  (However this 
is mitigated by the opportunity for children to attend local 
mainstream schools.) 

Socio-economic 

 
11. Summary of key impacts and actions 
 
 

Information and 
engagement 
underpinning equalities 
analysis  

Consultation (public meeting at BDB school and Surrey-i survey) 
Data (JSNA, EMS, School Census, HI children currently receiving 
support) 

Page 18

3



 

Key impacts (positive 
and/or negative) on 
people with protected 
characteristics  

Negative impacts are by and large balanced by positive impacts 

Changes you have 
made to the proposal 
as a result of the EIA  

None identified 

Key mitigating actions 
planned to address any 
outstanding negative 
impacts 

None identified 

Potential negative 
impacts that cannot be 
mitigated 

None identified 

 

Page 19

3



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 THE PROPOSED CLOSURE OF THE SPECIALIST HEARING IMPAIRED CENTRE AT BISHOP DAVID BROWN SCHOOL
	Equalities Impact Assessment_BDB_1.6


